
Page 1 of 3 

 

 City Council Meeting and Workshop 

June 1, 2015 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
 

5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Great Falls TV Presentation- Howard Kroll (30 minutes) 

B. Garage Sales and Flea Markets – Eric Cousens & Sue Clements-Dallaire (30 minutes) 

C. Budget Overview- Jill Eastman/Howard Kroll (30 minutes) 
 

After each workshop item is presented, the public will be given an opportunity to comment.  

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Crowley 

 

Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in 

one motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so 

requests.  If requested, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order 

it appears on the agenda.   

 

II.    Minutes   

 May 11, 2015 Special Council Meeting 

 May 18, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 

 

Communications, Presentations and Recognitions    

 Art Therapy- Phil Crowell (5 minutes) 

 LA Arts- Josh Vink (5 minutes) 

 Recognition – John Storer, Superintendent of the Auburn Water and Sewerage District 

 County Charter and Budget Commission – Andy Titus (5 minutes) 

 Mass Gathering/Special Event Application - Liberty Festival   

 

V.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 

to City business which is not on this agenda.   

                                        

VI.    Unfinished Business  

 

1. Order 40-05182015 

Authorizing the Finance Director to reallocate of unspent proceeds in the amount of $766,000 

from the City’s general obligation bonds. Second reading. Passage requires an affirmative 

vote of 5 Councilors.  

 

2. Order 41-05182015 

Authorizing the Finance Director to execute issuance of general obligation bonds and a tax 

levy therefore. Second reading. Passage requires an affirmative vote of 5 Councilors. 

 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 June 1, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

VII.    New Business  

 

3. Order 44-06012015 

Approving the liquor license for CAVU Restaurant, LLC., DBA CAVU Café located at 80 

Airport Drive, Auburn, Maine. Public Hearing. 

 

4. Resolve 03-06012015  
Adopting the Appropriations Resolve for Fiscal Year 2016. Public Hearing and first reading. 

Passage requires an affirmative vote of 4 Councilors. 

 

 

VIII. Executive Session   

 

IX. Reports 

 

Mayors Report 

 

City Councilors’ Reports               

 

City Manager’s Report  

 Committee Reports 

 Transportation 

o Lewiston Auburn Transit – Councilor Gerry 

o Airport, Railroad – Councilor Hayes 

o Bike-Ped Committee – Councilor Lee 

 Housing 

o Citizens Advisory Committee – Councilor Lee  

o Auburn Housing Authority – Councilor Gerry 

 Economic Development 

o L-A Economic Growth Council, Auburn Business Development Corporation – 

Councilor Lee  

 Education 

o Auburn School Committee – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Auburn Public Library – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Great Falls TV – Councilor Young  

 Environmental Services 

o Auburn Water District, Auburn Sewerage District – Councilor Crowley 

o Mid-Maine Waste Action Corporation – Councilor Walker 

 Recreation 

o Recreation and Special Events Advisory Board – Councilor Crowley 

 Public Safety 

o LA 911 – Councilor Walker              

X.  Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 

to City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

XI. Adjournment 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 June 1, 2015 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 

sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 

must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 

that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 
categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 

complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted in 
open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session if 

the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests therein 

or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining 

position of the body or agency;  
 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 
settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 

clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a 

substantial disadvantage;  
 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records is 

prohibited by statute; 
 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 
1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 
Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
Subject: GFTV Proposal 
 
Information:  
 

For over 15 years GFTV has been a valuable partner in citizen engagement with The City of Auburn, 
Lewiston and the Town of Lisbon. Our City Council, School Committee and Planning Board meetings are 
broadcasted live and repeated often throughout the week. Community Calendars are played so that agendas 
and public service announcements are constant and friendly reminders to the public of events and initiatives 
taking place in any of the municipalities. All of the above mentioned communities have enjoyed our PEG 
(Public, Education and Government) Access channels.  
 
While I agree it is good to have our access channels and meetings often played I believe we can greater 
utilize those channels by changing our service delivery structure.  
 
Our current structure has been resistant to change, challenged with fiscal constraints and management, 
frustrating for elected officials and unfortunately reached a point, I feel, requires an overhaul and a needed 
change to reflect the demands of our elected officials and public. The time is now.  
 

Advantages:  
• Better service 
• Control of programming and services 
• More accessibility for community members and elected officials to highlight Auburn events, etc. 
• Staff would be required to tape meetings 

 
Disadvantages: 

• Unknown costs for infrastructure, if any. Otherwise no disadvantage in my opinion 
 

City Budgetary Impacts:  
• None as of now- future impacts might include investment from the City  
 

Staff Recommended Action: Review the proposal and consider going in a different direction for cable access 
program and service 

 
Previous Meetings and History: 

• None  
 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: June 01, 2015     

Author:   Howard Kroll 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject:   Garage Sale and Flea Market Ordinances and Fees 

 

Information:  The Garage Sale and Flea Market Ordinance and Fee issues have surfaced again. A meeting was 

held with two Auburn Residents, Howard Kroll, Sue Clements-Dallaire, Councilor Gerry and Councilor Walker 

to discuss possible changes to the Garage Sale ordinance. Staff was directed to hold a public input meeting to 

discuss the Garage Sale and Flea Market ordinances and fees. The meeting took place on April 7, 2015. Three 

members of the public attended as well as a reporter from the Sun Journal. Staff was directed to bring this back 

to the Council for discussion.    

 

Advantages:  Reducing the fee for a one day event that falls under the Flea Market definition provides 

opportunities for individuals and organizations to hold their events at a reasonable cost, and the Agricultural 

Barn Sales provides an income opportunity for retired farmers.  

 

Disadvantages: Allowing one sale per month for up to three consecutive days each could result in complaints 

from neighbors. 

 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Discussion  

 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Flea Market fees were discussed in a workshop on 5/20/2013, brought to 

Council for action on 6/3/2013, was postponed to 6/17/2013, postponed again to 7/15/2013, postponed again to 

8/19/2013, and at that meeting, postponed to a date to be determined. On October 21, 2013 proposed changes to 

the Flea Market and Garage Sale Ordinances were work-shopped but not brought forward for further action. 

 

Attachments:  

Issues identified at the last meeting 

Press release for the Public Input Meeting 

Issues discussed at the 4-7-2015 Public Input Meeting 

Proposed change to the Garage Sale Ordinance  

Proposed change to definitions 

Proposed change to the Flea Market Ordinance 

Proposed change to the fee schedule 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: June 1, 2015    

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire 



Yard Sales, Flea Markets Barn Sale Planned Discussion 4.7.15 

 

 

Issues Identified at the Last Meeting 

-Fees are too high for short duration Flea Markets - $50 

per table is fine for long term event but oppressive for 

short duration sale.   

-Flea Market definition includes short term sales for 

charity and events at existing approved convention 

centers, auditoriums and gymnasiums – Create 

exemption for craft fairs, ski swaps, bazaar antique 

roadshow, etc.   

Proposal from Mr. Gauthier 

Agricultural Barn Sales – income opportunity for retired 

farmers with limits to minimize impacts on neighbors, 

roadways etc to one sale per month for 3 days each 

during summer months.   



City of Auburn, Maine 

Department of Planning and Development 

Page 1 of 1 
 

        
Press Release for Immediate Distribution 

  
 
 
Date:  April 3, 2015 
 
Contact Person:   

Eric Cousens, Deputy Director 
City of Auburn, Planning and Development  
60 Court Street 
Auburn, Maine 04210 
Phone:  (207) 333-6601 ext. 1154                 
Email:  ecousens@auburnmaine.gov  

 
 
       

City of Auburn to Hold Public Meeting on Yard Sales, Flea Markets and Barn Sales 
 
AUBURN, ME. – The City of Auburn has scheduled a public meeting on Tuesday, April 7th at 6 
p.m. in the Auburn City Hall, 2nd floor  Community Room.  The purpose of the meeting is to 
discuss and receive public input on possible changes to the City’s Code of Ordinances related to 
Yard Sales, Flea Markets and Barn Sales.   
 
Some of the issues discussed will be the number and size of temporary sales, fees for these kinds of 
sales, status of applicant (for profit or non-profits), locations (private property, convention or event 
centers, churches or gymnasiums) a new type of sale proposed by a property owner, namely and 
agricultural barn sale and other related topics. 
 
Interested citizens are invited to attend to learn more about the proposals or to express their 
opinions.   
 
 
For more information contact: 
Eric Cousens, Deputy Director, Department of Planning and Development 
Phone: 207-333-6601  ext.  1154 
Email:  ecousens@auburnmaine.gov  

mailto:ecousens@auburnmaine.gov
mailto:ecousens@auburnmaine.gov


Yard Sales, Flea Markets Barn Sale Meeting Notes 4.7.15 

Issues discussed at the meeting 

3 members from the public attended, 1 Sun Journal reporter , City Councilor Gerry and Eric 

Cousens from staff 

-Fees are too high for short duration Flea Markets - $50 per table is fine for long term event but 

oppressive for short duration sale.  Proposed fee of $50 for the first 25 tables for 1 day sales 

would be better but a smaller fee category for small one day sales should be added.  Add $25 

fee for up to 10 tables for one day flea markets and other sales noted in the same category in 

the ordinances.   

-Flea Market definition includes short term sales for charity and events at existing approved 

convention centers, auditoriums and gymnasiums – Create exemption for craft fairs, ski swaps, 

bazaar antique roadshow, etc.  Clearly define craft fair, bazaar/Charity fund raiser etc.   

- Neighborhood garage sales should not require the fee for each participant, but should be 

charged a reduced fee because the neighborhood coordination and single contact for the sale 

registering at City Hall saves the City time which reduces costs to process. Suggested one fee 

garage sale fee per 3 participants so that it is $5 each instead of $15 each if coordinated by 

neighborhood individual.  – Confirmed with Clerks Office after meeting that they interpret it as 

a single fee per event and not per household as may have been done under previous clerks 

office staff.  This change may not be necessary.   

Proposal from Mr. Roger Gauthier 

Agricultural Barn Sales – income opportunity for retired farmers with limits to minimize impacts 

on neighbors, roadways etc to one sale per month for 3 days each during summer months.   











 

 

  Page 1 

ARTICLE VI. - FLEA MARKETS, Craft Fairs, Swap Meets, and Bazaars   

 

Sec. 14-140. - Permit required; application.  

No flea market, craft fair, swap meet, or bazaar shall be conducted without a permit, which shall be 
obtained by the owner or duly authorized agent of the premises where the flea marketsuch event is to be 
located by submitting a completed application to the city clerk's office upon forms provided for such 
purpose which shall include a list of all participating vendors and their contact information. The fees for 
permits issued under this article shall be as established in the license fee schedule.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-123, 2-7-2011) 

Sec. 14-141. - Provisions of section 14-2 not applicable.  

Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter relating to peddlers, individual participants in a flea 
market, craft fair, swap meet, or bazaar need not secure a itinerant vendor or peddler's license.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-124, 2-7-2011) 

Sec. 14-142. - Reoccurring sales of personal property.   

No person may conduct anysale of personal property for more than two periods not to exceed three 

days each within a six month period, even on their own property, without first obtaining a permit to 

operate a flea market.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-125, 2-7-2011) 

Secs. 14-143—14-159. - Reserved.  



Mobile food distribution unit (roving diner):  

Three months .....100.00  

Six months .....125.00  

Twelve months .....150.00  

Vendor use of city property (each three-month period) .....50.00  

Peddlers:  

Per event .....75.00  

30-day permit .....100.00  

Garage sales—each (maximum of two three-day permits within six months):  

On-line issuance .....10.00  

In office issuance .....15.00  

Garage Sale (maximum of two 3 day permits within a 6 month period) - $15.00 each 

Agricultural Barn Sale (maximum of one 3 day permit per month between the months of April and 

October) - $15.00 each 

Secondhand dealer license—annually .....85.00  

Pawnbroker license—annually plus actual cost of advertising hearing .....100.00  

Junkyard/automobile graveyard (no on-line license)—annually plus actual cost of advertising 
hearing: .....100.00  

Taxicabs:  

Taxicab business license (police department inspection required)—annually per cab .....55.00  

Taxicab driver's license (Lewiston permit required)—annually .....25.00  

Call-out inspection fee (establishment requested outside normal hours)—each, plus inspector's 
overtime hourly rate .....100.00  

Re-inspection fee .....100.00  

Flea market, craft fairs, swap meets, and bazaars:— 

One day event …. $50.00 up to 25 tables, $100 over 25 tables 

tThree months:  

Per table .....50.00  

Maximum per location .....500.00  

Alcohol beverage establishments:  

Class A Lounge (liquor)—annually (plus actual cost of advertising hearing) .....1,000.00  



Up to 2,999 square feet .....1,300.00  

From 3,000 to 5,999 square feet .....1,500.00  

6,000 square feet and larger .....TBD  

Tavern license—annually:  

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

Subject: Resolve Adopting the 2015—2016 Annual Appropriation and Revenue Resolve (First Reading and 

Public Hearing) 

 

Information: In accordance with the city Charter, Article 8, Section 8.6, prior to the fiscal year the City 

Council shall adopt an annual appropriation resolve making appropriations by department, fund, services, 

strategy or other organizational unit and authorizing an allocation for each program or activity. 

 

The Council has been supplied with a resolve to adopt the annual appropriations for the City of Auburn, which 

includes final figures for revenue, total appropriation and municipal budget. 

 

The school appropriation resolve has been incorporated into this annual appropriation resolve for the City of 

Auburn. 

 

Two readings are required for passage of this resolve. The second reading will be scheduled for the next 

Council meeting on June 15, 2015. 

 

Advantages: By Charter the annual appropriation resolve must be passed before the end of the current fiscal 

year. The public hearing allows public comment and the second reading will not take place for 2 weeks, which 

would allow enough time to make amendments if necessary. 

 

Disadvantages: None 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends passage of the resolve on first reading. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Budget presentation on March 23, 2015, various budget workshops in April 

and May. 

 

 

Attachments:  

Resolve for the 2015-2016 Annual Appropriation and Revenue 

Summary of Proposed Budget (with reductions of $173,509 to cover the School Resource Officers and maintain 

the 1.8% increase) 

Summary of Estimated Non Property Tax Revenue 

List of Changes made to cover the School Resource Officers in the Municipal Budget 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: 6-1-2015  Resolve   03-06012015 

Author:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 
Adam Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

RESOLVE 03-06012015 
 

RESOLVED, that the following be, and hereby is the Annual Appropriation and Revenue Resolve of the 
City of Auburn for the fiscal year 2015-2016, which includes the amounts appropriated herein and revenues 
from all sources beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 
 

The estimated aggregate amount of non-property tax revenue is $35,176,298 with a municipal revenue 
budget of $12,558,137 and a School Department revenue budget of $22,618,161. 
 
 The aggregate appropriation for the City of Auburn is $77,552,581, with a municipal budget of 
$36,348,116 County budget of $2,142,268 and a School Department budget of $39,062,197 which received 
School Committee approval on May 6, 2015, and school budget approved at the May 11, 2015 Council Meeting 
pursuant to the School Budget Validation vote on June 11, 2015, in accordance with Maine Revised Statues, 
Title 20-A § 1486 and based on the budget submitted to the Auburn City Council on March 23, 2015, by the 
City Manager, and notification was posted on the City of Auburn website on May 28, 2015 that a public hearing 
would be held on June 1, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. and said hearing having been held on that date, and as amended by 
the City Council, the same is hereby appropriated for the fiscal year 2015-2016 beginning July 1, 2015 for the 
lawful expenditures of the City of Auburn and the County of Androscoggin taxes, and said amounts are 
declared not to be in excess of the estimated revenue from taxation and sources other than taxation for the fiscal 
year of 2015-2016. 

 
SCHOOL BUDGET ARTICLES 

 
1. That $15,417,903.00 be authorized to be expended for Regular Instruction; 

2. That $8,693,851.00 be authorized to be expended for Special Education; 

3. That $-0- be authorized to be expended for Career and Technical Education; 

4. That $785,509.00 be authorized to be expended for Other Instruction; 

5. That $4,074,510.00 be authorized to be expended for Student and Staff Support; 

6. That $861,384.00 be authorized to be expended for System Administration; 

7. That $1,367,775.00 be authorized to be expended for School Administration; 

8. That $1,097,905.00 be authorized to be expended for Transportation and Buses; 

9. That $5,214,297.00 be authorized to be expended for Facilities Maintenance; 

10. That $1,128,505.00 be authorized to be expended for Debt Service and Other 
          Commitments; 

11. That $420,558.00 be authorized to be expended for All Other Expenditures; 



 
12. That $39,062,197.00 be appropriated for the total cost of funding public education from Pre-

kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and that 
$16,444,036.00 be raised as the municipality’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in 
accordance with the Maine Revised Statues, Title 20-A, section 15688; 
 

Statutory Recommendation   $16,566,669 
City Council Adopted   $16,444,036 

 
Explanation:  The city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act is the 
amount of money determined by state law to be the minimum amount that a municipality must raise 
in order to receive the full amount of state dollars. 
 

      13.  That $1,128,505.00 be raised and appropriated for the annual payments on debt service previously 
approved by the city’s legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state-
funded portions of school construction projects and minor capital projects in addition to the funds 
appropriated as the local share of the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12; 

 
Explanation:  Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the annual payments 
on the city’s long-term debt for major capital school construction projects and minor capital 
renovation projects that are not approved for state subsidy.  The bonding of this long-term debt was 
previously approved by the voters or other legislative body. 

 
14. That $0.00 be raised and appropriated in additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine 

Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690; 
 

Explanation:  The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the 
municipality’s local contributions to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and 
local amounts raised for the annual payment on non-state-funded debt service that will help achieve 
the school department budget for education programs. 

 

15. That the school committee be authorized to expend $38,641,639.00 for the fiscal year  beginning July 1, 
2015 and ending June 30, 2016 from the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act, 
non-state-funded school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the 
Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts, fund balances, 
state subsidy and other receipts for the support of schools; 

 
16. That the City of Auburn appropriate $382,955.00 for adult education and raise $189,080.00 as the local 

share, with authorization to expend any additional incidental or miscellaneous receipts in the interest for 
the well-being of the adult education program; 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 



 
17.  That the City of Auburn raise and appropriate $37,603.00 for the services of Community Services-

Crossing Guards. 
 

18. That in addition to amount approved in the preceding articles, the school committee be authorized to 
expend such other sums as may be received from federal or state grants or programs or other sources 
during the fiscal year for school purposes, provided that such grants, programs or other sources do not 
require the expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated; 

 
19. That the City of Auburn increase the amount of the total school budget and the amounts the school 

committee is authorized to expend under the previous article, to the extent of any unanticipated increase 
in the adjusted state contribution under the Essential Programs and Services funding model. 

 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 



11:45 AM 5/28/2015

Fiscal Year 2016 manager proposed budget summary 051215 all SRO in city with reductions to cover1

COUNCIL MANAGER
ADOPTED PROPOSED
BUDGET BUDGET
FY 14-15 FY 15-16 $ Change % Change

City Expenses
Operating Expenses 25,278,480 25,769,972 491,492 1.94%
Debt Service/TIF 8,847,968 8,924,778 76,810 0.87%
Intergovernmental 3,741,502 3,795,634 54,132 1.45%

Total City Expenses 37,867,950 38,490,384 622,434 1.64%
School Expenses

Operating Expenses 35,534,192 36,220,126 685,934 1.93%
Debt Service 2,707,131 2,842,071 134,940 4.98%

Total School Expenses 38,241,323 39,062,197 820,874 2.15%
Total Expenses 76,109,273 77,552,581 1,443,308 1.90%
Less: Non-Tax Revenues

City 12,390,584 12,558,137 167,553 1.35%
School 22,092,693 22,618,161 525,468 2.38%
Total Non-Tax Revenues 34,483,277 35,176,298 693,021 2.01%

Tax Levy
City 23,430,486 23,789,979 359,493 1.53%
School 16,148,630 16,444,036 295,406 1.83%
County 2,046,880 2,142,268 95,388 4.66%
Overlay

Total Tax Levy 41,625,996 42,376,283 750,287 1.80%
Total Assessed Value 1,984,917,378 1,976,187,978
Tax Rate

City 11.79 12.04 0.25 2.12%
School 8.13 8.32 0.19 2.35%
County 1.03 1.08 0.05 5.12%

Total 20.95 21.44 0.49 2.36%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS



11:45 AM 5/28/2015

2

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)
Administration
City Clerk 164,593 201,296 165,053 460 0.28%
City Manager 280,750 269,340 269,340 (11,410) -4.06%
Economic Development 359,500 361,080 361,080 1,580 0.44%
Finance 605,135 621,705 619,855 14,720 2.43%
Human Resources 139,578 147,319 143,526 3,948 2.83%
IT 413,829 433,825 390,190 (23,639) -5.71%
Legal Services 65,000 65,000 65,000 0 0.00%
Mayor & Council 78,532 82,133 77,366 (1,166) -1.48%

Total Administration 2,106,917 2,181,698 2,091,410 0 (15,507) -0.74%

Community Services
Health & Social Services
  Administration 86,972 87,855 75,722 (11,250) -12.94%
  Assistance 105,982 108,989 108,989 3,007 2.84%
Planning & Permitting 902,494 1,000,215 906,631 4,137 0.46%
Recreation & Special Events 355,469 340,871 338,871 (16,598) -4.67%
Public Library 960,692 987,516 979,516 18,824 1.96%

Total Community Services 2,411,609 2,525,446 2,409,729 0 (1,880) -0.08%

Fiscal Services
Debt Service 6,263,936 6,324,864 6,324,864 60,928 0.97%
Emergency Reserve 375,289 375,289 375,289 0 0.00%
Facilities 698,335 686,736 653,080 (45,255) -6.48%
Transfer to TIF 2,584,032 2,599,914 2,599,914 15,882 0.61%
Fringe Benefits 4,737,117 5,318,296 5,171,309 434,192 9.17%
Workers' Compensation 468,081 496,536 496,536 28,455 6.08%

Total Fiscal Services 15,126,790 15,801,635 15,620,992 0 494,202 3.27%

Public Safety
Fire 4,057,633 4,111,634 4,099,634 42,001 1.04%
Fire EMS Transport 635,468 622,801 549,801 (85,667) -13.48%
Police 3,738,108 4,149,848 3,870,995 132,887 3.55%

Total Public Safety 8,431,209 8,884,283 8,520,430 0 89,221 1.06%

Public Services
Public Services 4,628,839 4,576,189 4,525,898 (102,941) -2.22%
Solid Waste 822,071 927,278 927,278 105,207 12.80%
Water & Sewer 599,013 599,013 599,013 0 0.00%

Total Public Works 6,049,923 6,102,480 6,052,189 0 2,266 0.04%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS



11:45 AM 5/28/2015

3

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

Total Municipal 34,126,448 35,561,042 34,694,750 0 568,302 1.67%

Intergovernmental Programs
County Taxes 2,046,880 2,142,268 2,142,268 95,388 4.66%
Tax Sharing 270,000 270,000 270,000 0 0.00%
Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport 105,000 182,000 105,000 0 0.00%
Community Little Theater 0 0 0.00%
LA Arts 17,000 0 (17,000) -100.00%
Museum LA 0 0 0 0.00%
Lew-Aub Economic Growth Council (see EconDev) 0 0 0.00%
Lew-Aug Transit Committee 211,377 209,244 209,244 (2,133) -1.01%
Auburn Only Transportation 23,996 (23,996) -100.00%
Lew-Aub 911 Communications Center 1,067,249 1,100,631 1,069,122 1,873 0.18%

Total Intergovernmental Programs 3,741,502 3,904,143 3,795,634 0 54,132 1.45%

Grand Total Municipal 37,867,950 39,465,185 38,490,384 0 622,434 1.64%

     Education Operation 35,534,192 37,305,671 36,220,126 685,934 1.93%
     Education Debt Service 2,707,131 2,842,071 2,842,071 134,940 4.98%
Total School 38,241,323 40,147,742 39,062,197 0 820,874 2.15%

Total Budget 76,109,273 79,612,927 77,552,581 0 1,443,308 1.90%



11:45 AM 5/28/2015

4

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

        Non-Property Tax Revenue
                             Municipal 12,390,584 12,558,137 12,558,137 0 167,553 1.35%
                             Education 22,092,693 22,618,161 22,618,161 0 525,468 2.38%
                             Total 34,483,277 35,176,298 35,176,298 0 693,021 2.01%

        Property Tax Dollars Needed
                             Municipal 25,477,366 26,907,048 25,932,247 0 454,881 1.79%
                             Education 16,148,630 17,529,581 16,444,036 0 295,406 1.83%
                             Total 41,625,996 44,436,629 42,376,283 0 750,287 1.80%

Property Tax Rate 20.95 22.49 21.44 0.00 0.49 2.36%
    Based on Assessed Values of : 1,984,917,378 1,976,187,978 1,976,187,978 1,976,187,978

Property Tax Rate
     Municipal Tax Rate $12.82 $13.62 $13.12 $0.00 0.30 2.36%
     Education Tax Rate $8.13 $8.87 $8.32 $0.00 0.19 2.35%

20.95 22.49 21.44 0.00 0.49 2.36%



5/28/2015

5

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

General Government
Homestead Exemption Reimbursement                          495,000       505,000         10,000          2.02%
Personal Property Reimbursement 1,350,000    1,555,000      205,000        0.00%
Tree Growth Reimbursement 10,000         10,000           -                    0.00%
Veterans Reimbursement 18,000         18,000           -                    0.00%
CDBG Reimbursement 8,000           8,000             -                    0.00%
In Lieu of Taxes                                         80,000         90,000           10,000          12.50%
Excise Tax-Vehicles                                      3,160,000    3,315,000      155,000        4.91%
Excise Tax-Boats 15,000         15,000           -                    0.00%
Excise Tax-Aircraft 10,000         20,000           10,000          100.00%
State Revenue Sharing                                    1,649,470    1,477,641      (171,829)       -10.42%
Other State Aid                                          4,000           4,000             -                    0.00%
Penalties & Interest                                     145,000       150,000         5,000            3.45%
Investment Income                                        10,000         5,000             (5,000)           -50.00%
Interest from Bonds                                      2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
Transfer in from TIF 500,000       545,000         45,000          9.00%
Transfer in from Special Revenue Funds 310,000       (310,000)       -100.00%
Transfer in from Parking Program 55,000         -                     (55,000)         -100.00%
Transfer in from Police Drug Money 45,000         45,000           -                    0.00%
Transfer in from Recreation Special Revenue 41,720         42,718           998               2.39%
Rental Income (Intermodal) 122,000       18,000           (104,000)       -85.25%
Sale of Property                                         20,000         20,000           -                    0.00%
Tax Sharing Revenue                                      155,000       155,000         -                    0.00%
Cable Television Franchise                               126,000       126,000         -                    0.00%
MMWAC Host Fees                                          206,000       210,000         4,000            1.94%
Energy Efficiency -                   -                     -                    #DIV/0!
Reimbursement-Other 10,000         10,000           -                    0.00%
Utility Reimbursement 27,500         27,500           -                    0.00%
Unclassified 10,000         10,000           -                    0.00%
Fund Balance Contribution 1,350,000    1,650,000      300,000        22.22%

Total General Government 9,934,690    10,033,859    -                        99,169          1.00%



5/28/2015

6

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

City Clerk
Hunting/Fishing/Dogs                                     2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
Neutered Animals                                         3,000           3,000             -                    0.00%
Voter Reg List                                           100              100                -                    0.00%
Clerk/Sale of Copies                                     200              200                -                    0.00%
City Clerk Notary                                        1,800           1,800             -                    0.00%
Banner Hanging Fee                                       3,300           3,300             -                    0.00%
Garage Sale Permits 3,000           3,000             -                    0.00%
Commercial License                                       40,000         40,000           -                    0.00%
Taxi License                                             4,000           4,000             -                    0.00%
Marriage License                                         5,000           5,000             -                    0.00%
Birth/Death/Marriage Cert                                25,000         25,000           -                    0.00%
Permits - Burial                                         7,000           7,000             -                    0.00%
Fines-Dog                                                3,000           3,000             -                    0.00%

Total City Clerk 97,400         97,400           -                        -                    0.00%

Finance
Reg - Vehicles                                           60,000         60,000           -                    0.00%

Total Finance 60,000         60,000           -                        -                    0.00%

Community Services-ICT
GIS/Data & Maps                                          20                20                  -                    0.00%

Total Community Services-ICT 20                20                  -                        -                    0.00%

Assessing
Maps & Copies                                            20                20                  -                    0.00%

Total Assessing 20                20                  -                        -                    0.00%

Health & Social Services
GA Reimbursement                                         70,000         70,000           -                    0.00%

Total Health & Social Services 70,000         70,000           -                        -                    0.00%



5/28/2015

7

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Planning & Permitting
Maps & Copies                                            500              500                -                    0.00%
Departmental Reviews 16,000         16,000           -                    0.00%
Planning/Codes & Ordinance                               -                   -                     -                    0.00%
Fire Alarm Inspections                                   29,000         29,000           -                    0.00%
Citation Ordinance                                       2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
Advertising Costs 5,000           5,000             -                    0.00%
Lisbon Reimbursement for Services 10,000         10,000           -                    0.00%
Permits - Building                                       110,000       110,000         -                    0.00%
CDBG Reimbursement for Services 50,000         50,000           -                    0.00%
Permits - Electrical                                     16,000         18,000           2,000            12.50%
Permits - Plumbing                                       10,500         11,000           500               4.76%
Permits - Sign                                           5,000           5,000             -                    0.00%

Total Planning & Permitting 254,000       256,500         -                        2,500            0.98%

Parks & Recreation
Arena -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%
Recreation Program                                       -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%

Total Parks & Recreation -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%
Community Services-Engineering
Fees - Eng-Misc                                          -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%
Fees - Inspection                                        5,000           6,000             1,000            20.00%
Fees - Drive Opening                                     200              200                -                    0.00%
Fees - Bid Documents 1,000           1,000             -                    0.00%
Permits - Fill                                           1,000           1,000             -                    0.00%
Permits - Street Opening                                 25,000         40,000           15,000          60.00%

Total Community Services-Engineering 32,200         48,200           -                        16,000          49.69%

Fire Department
Copies of Reports                                        200              200                -                    0.00%
Inspections -                   -                     -                    0.00%
EMS Transport 987,551       1,250,000      262,449        26.58%
EMS Agreement                                         -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%
Salvage Calls                                            100              100                -                    0.00%
Permits - Oil Burner                                     800              800                -                    0.00%

Total Fire Department 988,651       1,251,100      -                        262,449        26.55%



5/28/2015

8

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Police Department
Accident & Police                                        13,000         13,000           -                    0.00%
Court                                                    15,000         15,000           -                    0.00%
Photos & Tapes                                           2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
False Alarms                                             15,000         15,000           -                    0.00%
Animal Impound 1,000           1,000             -                    0.00%
Veh Rel/Non Driver                                       2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
Veh Rel/Driver Licence                                   11,000         11,000           -                    0.00%
ARRA Cops Grant 119,351       95,685           (23,666)         -19.83%
MDEA Reimbursement 60,102         61,000           898               1.49%
School Resource Officers 173,150       -                     (173,150)       -100.00%
Computer Crimes 72,000         21,353           (50,647)         -70.34%
Permits - Alarms -                   -                     -                    0.00%
Permits - Firearms                                       4,000           4,000             -                    0.00%
Fines - Parking Violations                               26,000         60,000           34,000          130.77%

Total Police Department 513,603       301,038         -                        (212,565)       -41.39%

Public Works
Community Cords -                   -                     -                        -                    
State/Local Road Assistance                              440,000       440,000         -                    0.00%

Total Public Works 440,000       440,000         -                        -                    0.00%

Total Municipal 12,390,584  12,558,137    -                        167,553        1.35%



5/28/2015

9

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

School Department
Reg Secondary Tuition                                    134,266       179,620         45,354          33.78%
SOS Tuition                                              90,000         107,576         17,576          19.53%
Adult Ed Tuition                                         93,300         93,300           -                    0.00%
State Subsidy for Education                              19,291,333  19,775,072    483,739        2.51%
Debt Service Reimbursement                               1,119,906    1,079,600      (40,306)         -3.60%
PreK/CDS 55,000         40,000           (15,000)         -27.27%
Special Ed/Mainecare                                     125,000       125,000         -                    0.00%
State Agency Clients                                     30,000         48,350           18,350          61.17%
State Aid for Adult Education                            98,500         104,761         6,261            6.36%
Miscellaneous                                            98,506         108,000         9,494            9.64%
Daycare Rent 50,000         50,000           -                    0.00%
Fund Balance 906,882       906,882         -                    0.00%
Total School 22,092,693  22,618,161    -                        525,468        2.38%

Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - Municipal 12,390,584  12,558,137    -                        167,553        1.35%
Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - School 22,092,693  22,618,161    -                        525,468        2.38%
Total Non-Property Tax Revenue 34,483,277  35,176,298    -                        693,021        2.01%

Total Proposed Budget - Municipal 37,867,950  38,490,384    -                        622,434        1.64%
Total Proposed Budget - School 38,241,323  39,062,197    -                        820,874        2.15%
Total Proposed Budget 76,109,273  77,552,581    -                        1,443,308     1.90%

Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - Municipal 25,477,366  25,932,247    -                        454,881        1.79%
Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - School 16,148,630  16,444,036    -                        295,406        1.83%
Total Property Tax Dollars Needed 41,625,996  42,376,283    -                        750,287        1.80%



Fire
MV Sup-Gasoline (500)$            reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16
Diesel (1,500)$         reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16

LA911
LA 911 (31,509)$         Vacant position the will not be filled

Police
MV Sup-Gas & Oil (10,000)$         reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16

Public Services
MV Sup-Gasoline (5,000)$           reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16
Diesel (10,000)$         reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16

Expenditure Reductions (58,509)$         

Estimated Revenue Increases

BETE Reimbursement (75,000)$         
Vehicle Excise (40,000)$         

TOTAL OFFSET FOR SROs (173,509)$       

BUDGET CHANGES
Manager Proposed to absorb the SROs after May 11, 2015 Council Meeting

















City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject:   “Art Therapy Program” 

 

Information: In 2014, Child Protective Services received reports/referrals of upwards of 200 children who have 

been sexually abused in Androscoggin County.  Recently, CPS has been working with eight (8) young girls who 

have been sexually assaulted.  This statistic is of utmost concern for the Auburn Police Department and social 

service providers.   

 

In an effort to assist Auburn’s victims of child sex abuse, the Auburn Police Department is requesting that the 

City Council consider allocating $2,240 from the unused local “Arts” funds that have been set aside to provide 

“hands on art therapy” to eight young girls.   The “Art Therapy Program” will focus on a target population of 11 

to 14 year old (pre-teens) victims and sessions will take place at the Sexual Assault Crisis Center.   

 

The “Art Therapy Program” will consist of: 

 Includes 2 licensed art therapists 

 Begin on June 29
th

 and end on August 28
th

 

 Planning, materials and transportation 

 Length of sessions:  2 hours total; 1.5 hours hands on art-making with .5 hours staff clean up and set up 

 

A full description of the Mission and Goals as well as the history of the ArtVan is attached. 

 

Advantages:  By providing an alternative to general therapy sessions – where there are children of their own 

age who suffered similar experiences - they will more easily disclose the details of their assault, their feelings 

and will have an opportunity to move forward more quickly with their own trauma recovery.    

 

Disadvantages:   None 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: Transfer $2,240 of FY 2015 unallocated “Art” funds for this project.  

 

Staff Recommended Action: Vote to transfer $2,240 in FY 2015 unallocated “Art” funds to provide an “Art 

Therapy Program” for eight young girls who have been the recent victims of a sexual assault.  

 

Previous Meetings and History:  

 

Attachments:  

 ArtVan Mission and Goals 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015    

Author:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 









 
www.laarts.org 
 
City Auburn Proposal - May 20th, 2015: 
 
L/A Arts is pleased to submit this proposal to the City of Auburn for 2015-16 funding for 
two Auburn based initiatives, Concerts in the Parks & Cultural Plan Lewiston/Auburn. For 
Concerts in the Parks (late summer 2015) L/A Arts seeks $4,000, and for the Cultural Plan 
Lewiston/Auburn, (Fall 2015-Spring 2016) it seeks $5,000 in matching funds for a Maine 
Arts Commission CCED grant it has applied for (if successfully received).  
 
Concerts in the Parks: 
L/A Arts believes in the need for highly visible and entertaining public art events in Auburn, 
and proposes to have four summer concerts in Festival Plaza and/or downtown Auburn 
areas during the late summer of 2015. These concerts will take place in the early evening 
and/or lunchtime, and be free to the public. The musicians represented will be high quality 
artists with local and Maine based regional roots, from across multiple musical genres. The 
series will extend the summer concerts model the organization has done in the past, with 
such notable artists as: Don Campbell, Robert Sylvain and Cajun Aces de Douce, Colwell 
Brothers, Veayo Twins, Maine Marimba Ensemble, Denny Breau and much more. 
 
L/A Arts has actively listened to the community of Auburn and regards highly the need for 
the organization to bring high quality events to the city as an extension of its mission. This 
initiative will support local artists while bringing their high quality artistry to the public. The 
opportunity to bring people together and drive them to downtown Auburn will cultivate 
economic activity and build the strength of our city's social fabric.  Music is an extremely 
popular art form which offers many personal opportunities for individuals to connect to the 
work.  It will help express the distinctive features and dynamics of our Auburn community 
through the expressive forms which will be represented. This initiative will coincide with a 
series of concerts across the river in Lewiston, which L/A Arts hopes to make a mainstay of 
its programming and service to the Twin Cities into the future. Funding from the City of 
Auburn will go toward direct costs associated with performances in Auburn only and cover 
artist, technical and promotional expenses:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Concerts in the Parks Budget Summary: Auburn City - 2015-16 
Expenses: Unit In - Kind Total 
Artist Fees Average - 500 per 

band 
 2,000 

Technical Fees 150 per show - 
Sound & Equipment 

 600 

Spaces (Permits) 150 Total 150 - Auburn & 
Lewiston Cities 

0 

Liability 50/per show  200 
Transportation/Travel 75/show - Artists & 

Technicians 
 

 300 

Advertising/Marketing 125/show 
 

 500 

Administrative 
(Indirect) 10% 

  360 

Total   
 

 3,960 

Amount Requested - 
City Auburn 

  4,000 

 
Cultural Plan Lewiston/Auburn: 
L/A Arts and Arts & Culture Lewiston Auburn (ACLA) are collaborating on a new initiative 
to develop a cultural plan for Lewiston and Auburn Maine. This project will bring together 
cross-sector leaders from our community to engage in a 12–18 month process of developing 
strategies that will elevate the arts and culture in the Twin Cities. This is an outstanding 
opportunity to establish new and meaningful partnerships between the arts and other 
sectors, strengthen L/A’s creative economy, and bolster funding and revenue for local arts 
projects. By pulling together rich and varied perspectives from cross sector leaders, the 
intended plan stands to tap into the rich intellectual and innovative resources of our 
community to realize best practices in arts and culture into the future. 
 
The specific outcomes created in this plan, realized over 3 years following the plan’s 
creation, may include: 

• Public art 
• Arts in education 
• Audience development 
• Promotion and marketing for the arts and culture 
• Retail space and housing for artists 
• Arts and culture central building 
• New and meaningful partnerships between the arts and culture and other sectors 

(including economic) 
• Additional ideas, based on steering committee members and Twin City-wide survey 

data, for how to grow Lewiston / Auburn’s cultural landscape 
 
CCED Grant: 
L/A Arts and its partners are pleased to apply for Phase I of the CCED grant, a crucial piece 
of their development of a cultural plan. L/A Arts staff, ACLA members, and Maine based 
Reinholt Consulting from the High Peak’s Arts Council will administer the cultural planning 
process. To finance this initiative, L/A Arts and ACLA are applying for a Maine Arts 
Commission “Creative Communities = Economic Development” (CCED) grant, which will 
help to ensure funding for the project in two phases. Reinholt Consulting was 



recommended to L/A Arts by the Maine Arts Commission to be the consulting firm 
for this initiative.  The grant announcement will take place in the late summer/early fall of 
2015. CCED Grant: http://mainearts.maine.gov/Pages/Grants/CCED-Grant   
 
The timeline for the plan: 
1. Cultural plan launching meeting - Fall 2015 
2. Strategies and data collection meeting - Late Fall/Winter 2015 
3. Data gathering and assessment meeting - Winter 2016 
4. Task forces and draft recommendations - Spring 2016 
5. Final draft and plan endorsement - Spring/Summer 2016 
 
L/A Arts is pleased to have received letters of support from Auburn's Mayor Jonathan 
Labonte and Lewiston Mayor Robert MacDonald for the grant proposal.  To be effective, 
this plan needs the support of a 20-25 member steering committee made up of community 
leaders who can lend insights and actions from their areas of expertise. Among an expert 
steering committee, the partnering organizations are proud to have confirmed one city 
councilor and city staff member from Auburn to participate.  
 
Cultural Plan L/A: Steering Committee 
Confirmed Members - April 2015 
1. Chip Morrison, President, Androscoggin Chamber of Commerce 
2. Lincoln Jeffers, Director of Economic & Community Development, City of Lewiston 
3. Misty Parker, Economic Development Specialist, City of Lewiston 
4. Grayling Cunningham, Artist; Founder, Artwalk L/A; Advisory Board President, Outright 
L/A; CoFounder, Confess Studios; Creative Director, Orbit Hair Styling 
5. Judy Andrucki, Attorney, Andrucki & King Law Offices 
6. Mary LaFontaine, Councilor, City of Auburn, Auburn School Committee Member 
7. Darby Ray, Director, Harward Center for Community Partnerships, Bates College 
8. Alan Manoian, Economic Development Specialist, City of Auburn 
9. John Holden, President and CoChair, LewistonAuburn Economic Growth Council 
10. Dina Jackson, Economic Development Specialist, Androscoggin Valley Council of 
Governments; Grant Manager, Maine’s Lakes & Mountains Tourism Council 
11. Rick Speer, Director, Lewiston Public Library 
12. Janet Mitchko, CoArtistic Director, Public Theater 
13. Chris L'Hommedieu, President, Community Little Theater; Attorney, L'Hommedieu Law 
14. Jim Parakilas, Faculty, James L. Moody, Jr. Family Professor of Performing Arts at 
Bates College 
15. Mike Davis, Principal, Walton Elementary School 
16. Jill Hyland, Educator, Edward Little High School 
17. Jana Mates, Assistant Principal, Longley Elementary School 
18. Bill Low, Curator, Bates College Museum of Art 
19. Charlie Hewitt, Artist; Developer 
20. David Blocher, Board Director, Maine Music Society; Member, Arts & Culture 
LewistonAuburn 
21. Heather Morin, Owner, She Doesn't Like Guthries Restaurant & Cafe 
22. Margaret Craven, Senator, State of Maine 
23. Rob Little, Artist 
24. Corallina Breuer, Artist; Secretary, Downeast Friends of the Folk Arts 
25. Sheri Withers, Owner, Downtown Handmade & Vintage 
26. Jared Lussier, Editor, Current Magazine 
27. Dianna Pozdniakov, Founder and Designer, SofiaFima 
28. Kirsten Nunnery, Box Office Manager, Franco Center 



 
Budget Summary: Cultural Plan Lewiston/Auburn 2015-16 
 
Income: 
City Auburn: (Grant Match - Projected) $5,000 
City Lewiston: (Grant Match - Projected)) $5,000 
ACLA Members (Projected): $5,000 
Foundations (Projected): $7,500 
Corporate Donations (Projected): $12,500 
Total: $35,000 
 
The CCED grant mandates that a reputable consultant is hired to lead the cultural planning 
process. Meeting space funding will be at L/A Arts, Bates College and other facilities 
necessary to effectively meet and prepare the plan, the expense for which will be donated in-
kind. Postage and electronic distribution and social media costs will be incurred from data 
collection and analysis, while mileage and tolls will be paid to staff and leadership team for 
any essential travel to execute the proposal.  Administrative costs will be incurred from the 
executive director and administrative program coordinator for L/A Arts. 
 
Bidder’s Organization Name: Reinholt Consulting 
Fixed Costs 
1. Research & Development - Materials and research review -$2,000 
Seek L/A Arts inputs 
Reinholt 1 day onsite plus prep and synthesis (includes travel) - $1,500 
Key sector convenings and interviews, plus prep and synthesis (includes travel) -$1,500 
Arts organization and artists convenings, plus prep and synthesis (includes travel) - $1,500 
Arts organization and artists surveying: design, vet, track, and synthesize data - $2,000 
Public opinion surveying , design, vet, track, and synthesize data -$2,000 
2. Strategic Cultural Plan Report 
Synthesize cumulative results and write findings report - $3,500 
Reinholt on site to share assessment results, collect L/A Arts, Project Leadership Team, and 
stakeholder feedback with prep and follow-up (includes travel) - $1,500 
Write draft plan - $3,500 
Vet draft plan (includes travel) - $1,000 
Incorporate feedback and present final report and deliverables (includes travel) - $2,000 
Total - $23,000 
 
Indirect Costs: 
Executive Director (5% + 10% taxes): $3,460 
Administrative Program Coordinator: (15% + 10% taxes): $2917 
Total: $6,377 
 
Direct Costs: General Cultural Planning 
Event, Studio, Meeting, or Office Space: $750 In-Kind (L/A Arts, Bates College) 
Print set-up, Postage (Data Collection): $2,000 
Electronic Distribution: Qualtrics/Lime/Survey Monkey Survey Software - $250 
Internet or Social Media Costs (Survey Monkey, Constant Contact, Other...): $375 
Travel, Mileage, Tolls, etc. (Data Collection, meetings): $450 
Advertisement: $950 
Total Direct Expenses: $4,595 
Total Expenses: $33,972 
 













6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

2 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

STAGE 
 

V 

4 E    

84 Court 
vending area

 
D  

 
O   
R    

S 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5 
 
 
 
 
 
Parking 
 
 
 
 

 

• 
NOT TO SCALE 

second 

possible 

Vendng /  

entertainment 

area 

PARKING 

PYROTECHNIC 

LAUNCH 

SITE 

PARKING 
 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

Subject: ORDER - AUTHORIZING REALLOCATION OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  

 

Information: This is the order authorizing the reallocation of $766,000 in unused bond funds to finance a 

portion of the FY 15-16 Capital Improvement Projects. (list attached) 

 

Advantages: These unused bond proceeds will provide funding for a portion of the FY 15-16 Capital 

Improvement projects. 

  

Disadvantages: N/A 

 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Approve the Reallocation Bond Order. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Joint Council and School Committee workshop on 2/23/15, Council 

Workshop 4/21/15 and public hearing and passage of first reading on May 18, 2015. 

 

 

Attachments:  

 Order 40-05182015 

 Public Hearing Notice 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: June 01, 2015   Order 40-05182015 

Author:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 



{W4718360.1} {W4718360.1} {W4718360.1} {W4319800.1} 

CITY OF AUBURN  
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

Pursuant to Section 8.13 of the City Charter, notice is hereby given that the Auburn City Council 
will hold a public hearing on Monday, May 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 
Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street on a proposed order reallocating $766,000 of unspent proceeds from 
various City General Obligation Bonds to a portion of the Capital Improvement Projects for FY 
16. 
 
Following the public hearing, the City Council expects to conduct the second reading and take 
final action on the order at the same June 1, 2015 meeting.   
 
The order is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s office during regular business hours. 
 
 
 



Tizz E.H. Crowley, Ward One  Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two Belinda A. Gerry, At-Large 

Mary J.K. Lafontaine, Ward Three David C. Young, At-Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonté, Mayor 

 

 

{W4718219.1} {W4718219.1}

 {W4718219.1}

 {W4718219.1}

 {W4718219.1}

 Page 1 of 1 

Order 40-05182015 

 
TITLE: ORDER - Reallocating Unspent Proceeds from the City's General Obligation Bonds. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Auburn issued General Obligation Bonds in various amounts for various projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, there remain unspent proceeds of the Bonds borrowed for multiple capital improvements, 
$766,000 of which excess proceeds the City Council desires to reappropriate and reallocate to be used for 
the projects listed below; 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, by the City Council of the City of Auburn, be it hereby ORDERED: 
 
THAT the excess proceeds of the Bonds, in the amount of $766,000 be and hereby are appropriated from 
the amount borrowed as part of various Bonds to finance the costs of the projects listed above. 
 
THAT the City’s Finance Director / Treasurer be, and hereby is, authorized and empowered in the name and 
on behalf of the City, to do or cause to be done all such acts and things, and to execute and deliver, all such 
financing documents, certificates, and other documents as may be necessary or advisable, with the advice 
of counsel for the City, to carry out the provisions of this Order, as may be necessary or desirable. 
 
A Public Notice describing the repurposing of these Bond proceeds borrowed for Various Projects to the list 
above was published on or before May 4, 2015, in the Lewiston Sun-Journal, a daily newspaper published in 
the City of Auburn and in Androscoggin County.   
 
A public hearing was held on May 18, 2015.   

CITYWIDE TEN YEAR 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 16 Unallocated

Description
 Unallocated 

Bond Proceeds 

Airport Terminal Aircraft Parking Apron  $              15,500 

Fire Vehicle Replacement-Command Vehicle 56,000$              

GFTV Video Production Equipment-Auburn Hall 29,000$              

LATC Bus Replacement 40,000$              

Public Works Asphalt Reclaimer Replacement 35,000$              

Public Works Salt Brine Maker 115,000$           

School Department School Department 475,500$           

766,000$           TOTAL CIP



City Council 
Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
Subject: ORDER - AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND A TAX LEVY THEREFOR 
 
Information: This is the order authorizing the sale of $5,700,000 in General Obligation Bonds to finance the 
FY 15-16 Capital Improvement Projects. (list attached) 
 
Advantages: These 5.7 million dollar bonds will provide funding for the FY 15-16 Capital Improvement 
projects and also help to begin reducing the total outstanding debt of the City, by issuing less debt than we are 
retiring in. 
 
Disadvantages: The total requests for Capital Improvements were over $20 million (including the School 
Department), and by not funding a larger portion of the requests, infrastructure, facilities and equipment 
continue to deteriorate. 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Passage of 2nd reading on the General Obligation Bond Order. 
 
Previous Meetings and History: Joint Council and School Committee workshop on 2/23/15, Council 
Workshop 4/21/15 and public hearing and passage of first reading on May 18, 2015 
 
 
Attachments:  

• Order 
• Notice of Public Hearing 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: June 01, 2015  Order  41-05182015 

Author:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 



{W4856746.1} 

CITY OF AUBURN  
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

Pursuant to Section 8.13 of the City Charter, notice is hereby given that the Auburn City Council 
will hold a public hearing on Monday, May 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 
Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street on a proposed order authorizing the City’s general obligation bonds 
in the amount of $5,700,000 to finance the City’s FY16 Capital Improvement Program. 
 
Following the public hearing, the City Council expects to conduct the second reading and take 
final action on the order at its June 1, 2015 meeting.   
 
The order is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s office during regular business hours. 
 
 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One  Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

{W4856699.2} 
Page 1 of 2 

Order 41-05182015   
 

TITLE: ORDER - AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND A TAX LEVY THEREFOR 
 
Be It Ordered by the Auburn City Council, following a public hearing duly called and held as required by Article 
8, Section 8.13 of the Auburn City Charter, that there be and hereby is authorized the issuance and sale of the 
City’s general obligation bonds and notes in anticipation thereof on either a taxable or a tax-exempt basis in 
the amount of $5,700,000, the proceeds of which, including premium, if any, and investment earnings thereon, 
are hereby appropriated to finance the following capital equipment and capital improvements (including costs 
of issuance for the bonds), all constituting part of the City’s FY16 Capital Improvement Program: 

 
THAT the bonds and notes authorized hereunder shall be signed by the City’s Finance Director and its 
Treasurer, attested by the City Clerk under the seal of the City.  A tax levy is hereby provided for each fiscal 
year that the bonds authorized hereunder remain outstanding to meet the annual installments of principal and 
interest as may accrue in each respective year.  The bonds and notes may be issued at one time or from time 
to time, either singly or in series, and the authority and discretion to fix method of sale, issue date, maturities, 
denominations, interest rate, place of payment, form and other details of said bonds and notes, and to take all 

CITYWIDE TEN YEAR 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 16 BONDS

Description
 Bonded General 

Fund 

Airport Grant Match  $                  50,000 

Facilities Center St Fire Station-Natural Gas Conversion 95,000$                  

Facilities Fire-Engine 2 Efficiency Upgrades 65,000$                  

Library Masonry Repair 60,000$                  

Engineering Reconstruction 1,000,000$            

Engineering Reclamation/Resurfacing 1,000,000$            

Engineering Major Drainage 500,000$               

Engineering MDOT Match 700,000$               

Engineering Sidewalks 200,000$               

Parks Replace Playground & Street Furniture 40,000$                  

Parks Renovation of Pettingill Baseball Fields 93,000$                  

Public Works Front End Loader Replacement 255,000$               

Public Works One Ton Truck Replacements 130,000$               

Public Works Backhoe Bucket Loader Replacement 137,500$               

Public Works Tracked Excavator Replacement 225,000$               

Public Works Tractor Replacement (hauling heavy equipment) 50,000$                  

Recreation Asbestos Abatement & Window Replacement - Hasty 75,000$                  

School Department School Department 1,024,500$            

5,700,000$            TOTAL CIP



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One  Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

{W4856699.2} 
Page 2 of 2 

other actions and to sign and deliver all other documents, certificates and agreements in order to provide for 
the sale thereof is hereby delegated to the City’s Finance Director. 
 
THAT in order to finance temporarily the projects described above, the Finance Director is authorized to 
expend up to $5,700,000 either from available funds of the City or from the proceeds of bond anticipation 
notes which would be reimbursed or refinanced from bond proceeds. 
 
THAT the bonds and notes authorized hereunder may be made subject to call for redemption, either with or 
without premium, on such terms as may be determined by the Finance Director. 
 
THAT the authority and discretion to designate the bond or notes authorized hereunder, or a portion thereof, 
as qualified tax-exempt obligations under Section 265 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, is 
hereby delegated to the Finance Director. 
 
THAT the City’s Finance Director, Treasurer, Clerk, and other proper officials of the City be, and hereby are, 
authorized and empowered in its name and on its behalf to do or cause to be done all such acts and things, 
and to execute, deliver, file, approve, and record all financing documents, contracts, agreements, certificates, 
preliminary and final official statements, tax certificates and other documents as may be necessary or 
advisable, with the advice of counsel for the City, to carry out the provisions of this order, as may be necessary 
or desirable. 
 
THAT if the Finance Director, Treasurer, or Clerk are for any reason are unavailable to approve and execute the 
bonds or any related financing documents, the person or persons then acting in any such capacity, whether as 
an assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is authorized to act for such official with the same force and effect as if 
such official had himself or herself performed such act. 
 
THAT the authority to issue the bonds or notes authorized hereunder shall automatically expire 2 years from 
the approval of this Order. 
 
THAT this order is a declaration of official intent pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 and shall be kept available 
for public inspection during reasonable business hours at the office of the City Clerk. 
 
A Public Notice describing the general purpose of the borrowing and the terms thereof was published on or 
before May 4, 2015, in the Lewiston Sun-Journal, a daily newspaper published in the City of Auburn and in 
Androscoggin County.   
 
A public hearing was held on May 18, 2015.   
 

     



City Council 
Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
Subject:New liquor license for existing business.  CAVU Restaurant, LLC, d/b/a CAVU Café, 80 Airport 
Drive. Public hearing and action for approving a new Liquor License.  
 
Information: CAVU Café (owner Richard Bennett) located at 80 Airport Drive, applied for a Liquor License. 
Police, Fire and Code have approved.  
 
Advantages: Helps to promote a local business, may attract patrons and potentially create additional jobs in the 
community. 
 
Disadvantages: None 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the liquor license for CAVU Café, 80 Airport Drive. 
 
Previous Meetings and History: None 
 
 
Attachments:  

• Liquor License Application 
• Criminal Background Check 
• Copy of Public Notice 
• Order 44-06012015 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: June 01, 2015  Order  44-06012015 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 





















CITY OF AUBURN 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
 
A public hearing will be held on Monday, June 1 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon as 
possible thereafter, in the Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court 
Street, to consider the Liquor License Application for: 
 

CAVU Restaurant, LLC, dba CAVU Cafe 
80 Airport Dr., Auburn, Maine  

 
All interested persons may appear to show cause, if any they may have, why 
this license should not be granted. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER  44-06012015 

 

 
ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council hereby approves the request for a Class I Restaurant with Liquor 

license for CAVU Restaurant, LLC., DBA CAVU Café located 80 Airport Drive. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

Subject: Resolve Adopting the 2015—2016 Annual Appropriation and Revenue Resolve (First Reading and 

Public Hearing) 

 

Information: In accordance with the city Charter, Article 8, Section 8.6, prior to the fiscal year the City 

Council shall adopt an annual appropriation resolve making appropriations by department, fund, services, 

strategy or other organizational unit and authorizing an allocation for each program or activity. 

 

The Council has been supplied with a resolve to adopt the annual appropriations for the City of Auburn, which 

includes final figures for revenue, total appropriation and municipal budget. 

 

The school appropriation resolve has been incorporated into this annual appropriation resolve for the City of 

Auburn. 

 

Two readings are required for passage of this resolve. The second reading will be scheduled for the next 

Council meeting on June 15, 2015. 

 

Advantages: By Charter the annual appropriation resolve must be passed before the end of the current fiscal 

year. The public hearing allows public comment and the second reading will not take place for 2 weeks, which 

would allow enough time to make amendments if necessary. 

 

Disadvantages: None 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends passage of the resolve on first reading. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Budget presentation on March 23, 2015, various budget workshops in April 

and May. 

 

 

Attachments:  

Resolve for the 2015-2016 Annual Appropriation and Revenue 

Summary of Proposed Budget (with reductions of $173,509 to cover the School Resource Officers and maintain 

the 1.8% increase) 

Summary of Estimated Non Property Tax Revenue 

List of Changes made to cover the School Resource Officers in the Municipal Budget 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: 6-1-2015  Resolve   03-06012015 

Author:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 
Adam Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

RESOLVE 03-06012015 
 

RESOLVED, that the following be, and hereby is the Annual Appropriation and Revenue Resolve of the 
City of Auburn for the fiscal year 2015-2016, which includes the amounts appropriated herein and revenues 
from all sources beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 
 

The estimated aggregate amount of non-property tax revenue is $35,176,298 with a municipal revenue 
budget of $12,558,137 and a School Department revenue budget of $22,618,161. 
 
 The aggregate appropriation for the City of Auburn is $77,552,581, with a municipal budget of 
$36,348,116 County budget of $2,142,268 and a School Department budget of $39,062,197 which received 
School Committee approval on May 6, 2015, and school budget approved at the May 11, 2015 Council Meeting 
pursuant to the School Budget Validation vote on June 11, 2015, in accordance with Maine Revised Statues, 
Title 20-A § 1486 and based on the budget submitted to the Auburn City Council on March 23, 2015, by the 
City Manager, and notification was posted on the City of Auburn website on May 28, 2015 that a public hearing 
would be held on June 1, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. and said hearing having been held on that date, and as amended by 
the City Council, the same is hereby appropriated for the fiscal year 2015-2016 beginning July 1, 2015 for the 
lawful expenditures of the City of Auburn and the County of Androscoggin taxes, and said amounts are 
declared not to be in excess of the estimated revenue from taxation and sources other than taxation for the fiscal 
year of 2015-2016. 

 
SCHOOL BUDGET ARTICLES 

 
1. That $15,417,903.00 be authorized to be expended for Regular Instruction; 

2. That $8,693,851.00 be authorized to be expended for Special Education; 

3. That $-0- be authorized to be expended for Career and Technical Education; 

4. That $785,509.00 be authorized to be expended for Other Instruction; 

5. That $4,074,510.00 be authorized to be expended for Student and Staff Support; 

6. That $861,384.00 be authorized to be expended for System Administration; 

7. That $1,367,775.00 be authorized to be expended for School Administration; 

8. That $1,097,905.00 be authorized to be expended for Transportation and Buses; 

9. That $5,214,297.00 be authorized to be expended for Facilities Maintenance; 

10. That $1,128,505.00 be authorized to be expended for Debt Service and Other 
          Commitments; 

11. That $420,558.00 be authorized to be expended for All Other Expenditures; 



 
12. That $39,062,197.00 be appropriated for the total cost of funding public education from Pre-

kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and that 
$16,444,036.00 be raised as the municipality’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in 
accordance with the Maine Revised Statues, Title 20-A, section 15688; 
 

Statutory Recommendation   $16,566,669 
City Council Adopted   $16,444,036 

 
Explanation:  The city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act is the 
amount of money determined by state law to be the minimum amount that a municipality must raise 
in order to receive the full amount of state dollars. 
 

      13.  That $1,128,505.00 be raised and appropriated for the annual payments on debt service previously 
approved by the city’s legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state-
funded portions of school construction projects and minor capital projects in addition to the funds 
appropriated as the local share of the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12; 

 
Explanation:  Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the annual payments 
on the city’s long-term debt for major capital school construction projects and minor capital 
renovation projects that are not approved for state subsidy.  The bonding of this long-term debt was 
previously approved by the voters or other legislative body. 

 
14. That $0.00 be raised and appropriated in additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine 

Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690; 
 

Explanation:  The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the 
municipality’s local contributions to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and 
local amounts raised for the annual payment on non-state-funded debt service that will help achieve 
the school department budget for education programs. 

 

15. That the school committee be authorized to expend $38,641,639.00 for the fiscal year  beginning July 1, 
2015 and ending June 30, 2016 from the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act, 
non-state-funded school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the 
Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts, fund balances, 
state subsidy and other receipts for the support of schools; 

 
16. That the City of Auburn appropriate $382,955.00 for adult education and raise $189,080.00 as the local 

share, with authorization to expend any additional incidental or miscellaneous receipts in the interest for 
the well-being of the adult education program; 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 



 
17.  That the City of Auburn raise and appropriate $37,603.00 for the services of Community Services-

Crossing Guards. 
 

18. That in addition to amount approved in the preceding articles, the school committee be authorized to 
expend such other sums as may be received from federal or state grants or programs or other sources 
during the fiscal year for school purposes, provided that such grants, programs or other sources do not 
require the expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated; 

 
19. That the City of Auburn increase the amount of the total school budget and the amounts the school 

committee is authorized to expend under the previous article, to the extent of any unanticipated increase 
in the adjusted state contribution under the Essential Programs and Services funding model. 

 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 



11:45 AM 5/28/2015

Fiscal Year 2016 manager proposed budget summary 051215 all SRO in city with reductions to cover1

COUNCIL MANAGER
ADOPTED PROPOSED
BUDGET BUDGET
FY 14-15 FY 15-16 $ Change % Change

City Expenses
Operating Expenses 25,278,480 25,769,972 491,492 1.94%
Debt Service/TIF 8,847,968 8,924,778 76,810 0.87%
Intergovernmental 3,741,502 3,795,634 54,132 1.45%

Total City Expenses 37,867,950 38,490,384 622,434 1.64%
School Expenses

Operating Expenses 35,534,192 36,220,126 685,934 1.93%
Debt Service 2,707,131 2,842,071 134,940 4.98%

Total School Expenses 38,241,323 39,062,197 820,874 2.15%
Total Expenses 76,109,273 77,552,581 1,443,308 1.90%
Less: Non-Tax Revenues

City 12,390,584 12,558,137 167,553 1.35%
School 22,092,693 22,618,161 525,468 2.38%
Total Non-Tax Revenues 34,483,277 35,176,298 693,021 2.01%

Tax Levy
City 23,430,486 23,789,979 359,493 1.53%
School 16,148,630 16,444,036 295,406 1.83%
County 2,046,880 2,142,268 95,388 4.66%
Overlay

Total Tax Levy 41,625,996 42,376,283 750,287 1.80%
Total Assessed Value 1,984,917,378 1,976,187,978
Tax Rate

City 11.79 12.04 0.25 2.12%
School 8.13 8.32 0.19 2.35%
County 1.03 1.08 0.05 5.12%

Total 20.95 21.44 0.49 2.36%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS



11:45 AM 5/28/2015

2

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)
Administration
City Clerk 164,593 201,296 165,053 460 0.28%
City Manager 280,750 269,340 269,340 (11,410) -4.06%
Economic Development 359,500 361,080 361,080 1,580 0.44%
Finance 605,135 621,705 619,855 14,720 2.43%
Human Resources 139,578 147,319 143,526 3,948 2.83%
IT 413,829 433,825 390,190 (23,639) -5.71%
Legal Services 65,000 65,000 65,000 0 0.00%
Mayor & Council 78,532 82,133 77,366 (1,166) -1.48%

Total Administration 2,106,917 2,181,698 2,091,410 0 (15,507) -0.74%

Community Services
Health & Social Services
  Administration 86,972 87,855 75,722 (11,250) -12.94%
  Assistance 105,982 108,989 108,989 3,007 2.84%
Planning & Permitting 902,494 1,000,215 906,631 4,137 0.46%
Recreation & Special Events 355,469 340,871 338,871 (16,598) -4.67%
Public Library 960,692 987,516 979,516 18,824 1.96%

Total Community Services 2,411,609 2,525,446 2,409,729 0 (1,880) -0.08%

Fiscal Services
Debt Service 6,263,936 6,324,864 6,324,864 60,928 0.97%
Emergency Reserve 375,289 375,289 375,289 0 0.00%
Facilities 698,335 686,736 653,080 (45,255) -6.48%
Transfer to TIF 2,584,032 2,599,914 2,599,914 15,882 0.61%
Fringe Benefits 4,737,117 5,318,296 5,171,309 434,192 9.17%
Workers' Compensation 468,081 496,536 496,536 28,455 6.08%

Total Fiscal Services 15,126,790 15,801,635 15,620,992 0 494,202 3.27%

Public Safety
Fire 4,057,633 4,111,634 4,099,634 42,001 1.04%
Fire EMS Transport 635,468 622,801 549,801 (85,667) -13.48%
Police 3,738,108 4,149,848 3,870,995 132,887 3.55%

Total Public Safety 8,431,209 8,884,283 8,520,430 0 89,221 1.06%

Public Services
Public Services 4,628,839 4,576,189 4,525,898 (102,941) -2.22%
Solid Waste 822,071 927,278 927,278 105,207 12.80%
Water & Sewer 599,013 599,013 599,013 0 0.00%

Total Public Works 6,049,923 6,102,480 6,052,189 0 2,266 0.04%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS



11:45 AM 5/28/2015

3

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

Total Municipal 34,126,448 35,561,042 34,694,750 0 568,302 1.67%

Intergovernmental Programs
County Taxes 2,046,880 2,142,268 2,142,268 95,388 4.66%
Tax Sharing 270,000 270,000 270,000 0 0.00%
Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport 105,000 182,000 105,000 0 0.00%
Community Little Theater 0 0 0.00%
LA Arts 17,000 0 (17,000) -100.00%
Museum LA 0 0 0 0.00%
Lew-Aub Economic Growth Council (see EconDev) 0 0 0.00%
Lew-Aug Transit Committee 211,377 209,244 209,244 (2,133) -1.01%
Auburn Only Transportation 23,996 (23,996) -100.00%
Lew-Aub 911 Communications Center 1,067,249 1,100,631 1,069,122 1,873 0.18%

Total Intergovernmental Programs 3,741,502 3,904,143 3,795,634 0 54,132 1.45%

Grand Total Municipal 37,867,950 39,465,185 38,490,384 0 622,434 1.64%

     Education Operation 35,534,192 37,305,671 36,220,126 685,934 1.93%
     Education Debt Service 2,707,131 2,842,071 2,842,071 134,940 4.98%
Total School 38,241,323 40,147,742 39,062,197 0 820,874 2.15%

Total Budget 76,109,273 79,612,927 77,552,581 0 1,443,308 1.90%



11:45 AM 5/28/2015

4

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

        Non-Property Tax Revenue
                             Municipal 12,390,584 12,558,137 12,558,137 0 167,553 1.35%
                             Education 22,092,693 22,618,161 22,618,161 0 525,468 2.38%
                             Total 34,483,277 35,176,298 35,176,298 0 693,021 2.01%

        Property Tax Dollars Needed
                             Municipal 25,477,366 26,907,048 25,932,247 0 454,881 1.79%
                             Education 16,148,630 17,529,581 16,444,036 0 295,406 1.83%
                             Total 41,625,996 44,436,629 42,376,283 0 750,287 1.80%

Property Tax Rate 20.95 22.49 21.44 0.00 0.49 2.36%
    Based on Assessed Values of : 1,984,917,378 1,976,187,978 1,976,187,978 1,976,187,978

Property Tax Rate
     Municipal Tax Rate $12.82 $13.62 $13.12 $0.00 0.30 2.36%
     Education Tax Rate $8.13 $8.87 $8.32 $0.00 0.19 2.35%

20.95 22.49 21.44 0.00 0.49 2.36%



5/28/2015

5

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

General Government
Homestead Exemption Reimbursement                          495,000       505,000         10,000          2.02%
Personal Property Reimbursement 1,350,000    1,555,000      205,000        0.00%
Tree Growth Reimbursement 10,000         10,000           -                    0.00%
Veterans Reimbursement 18,000         18,000           -                    0.00%
CDBG Reimbursement 8,000           8,000             -                    0.00%
In Lieu of Taxes                                         80,000         90,000           10,000          12.50%
Excise Tax-Vehicles                                      3,160,000    3,315,000      155,000        4.91%
Excise Tax-Boats 15,000         15,000           -                    0.00%
Excise Tax-Aircraft 10,000         20,000           10,000          100.00%
State Revenue Sharing                                    1,649,470    1,477,641      (171,829)       -10.42%
Other State Aid                                          4,000           4,000             -                    0.00%
Penalties & Interest                                     145,000       150,000         5,000            3.45%
Investment Income                                        10,000         5,000             (5,000)           -50.00%
Interest from Bonds                                      2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
Transfer in from TIF 500,000       545,000         45,000          9.00%
Transfer in from Special Revenue Funds 310,000       (310,000)       -100.00%
Transfer in from Parking Program 55,000         -                     (55,000)         -100.00%
Transfer in from Police Drug Money 45,000         45,000           -                    0.00%
Transfer in from Recreation Special Revenue 41,720         42,718           998               2.39%
Rental Income (Intermodal) 122,000       18,000           (104,000)       -85.25%
Sale of Property                                         20,000         20,000           -                    0.00%
Tax Sharing Revenue                                      155,000       155,000         -                    0.00%
Cable Television Franchise                               126,000       126,000         -                    0.00%
MMWAC Host Fees                                          206,000       210,000         4,000            1.94%
Energy Efficiency -                   -                     -                    #DIV/0!
Reimbursement-Other 10,000         10,000           -                    0.00%
Utility Reimbursement 27,500         27,500           -                    0.00%
Unclassified 10,000         10,000           -                    0.00%
Fund Balance Contribution 1,350,000    1,650,000      300,000        22.22%

Total General Government 9,934,690    10,033,859    -                        99,169          1.00%



5/28/2015

6

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

City Clerk
Hunting/Fishing/Dogs                                     2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
Neutered Animals                                         3,000           3,000             -                    0.00%
Voter Reg List                                           100              100                -                    0.00%
Clerk/Sale of Copies                                     200              200                -                    0.00%
City Clerk Notary                                        1,800           1,800             -                    0.00%
Banner Hanging Fee                                       3,300           3,300             -                    0.00%
Garage Sale Permits 3,000           3,000             -                    0.00%
Commercial License                                       40,000         40,000           -                    0.00%
Taxi License                                             4,000           4,000             -                    0.00%
Marriage License                                         5,000           5,000             -                    0.00%
Birth/Death/Marriage Cert                                25,000         25,000           -                    0.00%
Permits - Burial                                         7,000           7,000             -                    0.00%
Fines-Dog                                                3,000           3,000             -                    0.00%

Total City Clerk 97,400         97,400           -                        -                    0.00%

Finance
Reg - Vehicles                                           60,000         60,000           -                    0.00%

Total Finance 60,000         60,000           -                        -                    0.00%

Community Services-ICT
GIS/Data & Maps                                          20                20                  -                    0.00%

Total Community Services-ICT 20                20                  -                        -                    0.00%

Assessing
Maps & Copies                                            20                20                  -                    0.00%

Total Assessing 20                20                  -                        -                    0.00%

Health & Social Services
GA Reimbursement                                         70,000         70,000           -                    0.00%

Total Health & Social Services 70,000         70,000           -                        -                    0.00%



5/28/2015

7

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Planning & Permitting
Maps & Copies                                            500              500                -                    0.00%
Departmental Reviews 16,000         16,000           -                    0.00%
Planning/Codes & Ordinance                               -                   -                     -                    0.00%
Fire Alarm Inspections                                   29,000         29,000           -                    0.00%
Citation Ordinance                                       2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
Advertising Costs 5,000           5,000             -                    0.00%
Lisbon Reimbursement for Services 10,000         10,000           -                    0.00%
Permits - Building                                       110,000       110,000         -                    0.00%
CDBG Reimbursement for Services 50,000         50,000           -                    0.00%
Permits - Electrical                                     16,000         18,000           2,000            12.50%
Permits - Plumbing                                       10,500         11,000           500               4.76%
Permits - Sign                                           5,000           5,000             -                    0.00%

Total Planning & Permitting 254,000       256,500         -                        2,500            0.98%

Parks & Recreation
Arena -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%
Recreation Program                                       -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%

Total Parks & Recreation -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%
Community Services-Engineering
Fees - Eng-Misc                                          -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%
Fees - Inspection                                        5,000           6,000             1,000            20.00%
Fees - Drive Opening                                     200              200                -                    0.00%
Fees - Bid Documents 1,000           1,000             -                    0.00%
Permits - Fill                                           1,000           1,000             -                    0.00%
Permits - Street Opening                                 25,000         40,000           15,000          60.00%

Total Community Services-Engineering 32,200         48,200           -                        16,000          49.69%

Fire Department
Copies of Reports                                        200              200                -                    0.00%
Inspections -                   -                     -                    0.00%
EMS Transport 987,551       1,250,000      262,449        26.58%
EMS Agreement                                         -                   -                     -                        -                    0.00%
Salvage Calls                                            100              100                -                    0.00%
Permits - Oil Burner                                     800              800                -                    0.00%

Total Fire Department 988,651       1,251,100      -                        262,449        26.55%



5/28/2015

8

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Police Department
Accident & Police                                        13,000         13,000           -                    0.00%
Court                                                    15,000         15,000           -                    0.00%
Photos & Tapes                                           2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
False Alarms                                             15,000         15,000           -                    0.00%
Animal Impound 1,000           1,000             -                    0.00%
Veh Rel/Non Driver                                       2,000           2,000             -                    0.00%
Veh Rel/Driver Licence                                   11,000         11,000           -                    0.00%
ARRA Cops Grant 119,351       95,685           (23,666)         -19.83%
MDEA Reimbursement 60,102         61,000           898               1.49%
School Resource Officers 173,150       -                     (173,150)       -100.00%
Computer Crimes 72,000         21,353           (50,647)         -70.34%
Permits - Alarms -                   -                     -                    0.00%
Permits - Firearms                                       4,000           4,000             -                    0.00%
Fines - Parking Violations                               26,000         60,000           34,000          130.77%

Total Police Department 513,603       301,038         -                        (212,565)       -41.39%

Public Works
Community Cords -                   -                     -                        -                    
State/Local Road Assistance                              440,000       440,000         -                    0.00%

Total Public Works 440,000       440,000         -                        -                    0.00%

Total Municipal 12,390,584  12,558,137    -                        167,553        1.35%



5/28/2015

9

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2016 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY15 AND FY16 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 Year Budget  (Decrease)

School Department
Reg Secondary Tuition                                    134,266       179,620         45,354          33.78%
SOS Tuition                                              90,000         107,576         17,576          19.53%
Adult Ed Tuition                                         93,300         93,300           -                    0.00%
State Subsidy for Education                              19,291,333  19,775,072    483,739        2.51%
Debt Service Reimbursement                               1,119,906    1,079,600      (40,306)         -3.60%
PreK/CDS 55,000         40,000           (15,000)         -27.27%
Special Ed/Mainecare                                     125,000       125,000         -                    0.00%
State Agency Clients                                     30,000         48,350           18,350          61.17%
State Aid for Adult Education                            98,500         104,761         6,261            6.36%
Miscellaneous                                            98,506         108,000         9,494            9.64%
Daycare Rent 50,000         50,000           -                    0.00%
Fund Balance 906,882       906,882         -                    0.00%
Total School 22,092,693  22,618,161    -                        525,468        2.38%

Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - Municipal 12,390,584  12,558,137    -                        167,553        1.35%
Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - School 22,092,693  22,618,161    -                        525,468        2.38%
Total Non-Property Tax Revenue 34,483,277  35,176,298    -                        693,021        2.01%

Total Proposed Budget - Municipal 37,867,950  38,490,384    -                        622,434        1.64%
Total Proposed Budget - School 38,241,323  39,062,197    -                        820,874        2.15%
Total Proposed Budget 76,109,273  77,552,581    -                        1,443,308     1.90%

Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - Municipal 25,477,366  25,932,247    -                        454,881        1.79%
Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - School 16,148,630  16,444,036    -                        295,406        1.83%
Total Property Tax Dollars Needed 41,625,996  42,376,283    -                        750,287        1.80%



Fire
MV Sup-Gasoline (500)$            reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16
Diesel (1,500)$         reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16

LA911
LA 911 (31,509)$         Vacant position the will not be filled

Police
MV Sup-Gas & Oil (10,000)$         reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16

Public Services
MV Sup-Gasoline (5,000)$           reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16
Diesel (10,000)$         reduction in contract for 2/3 of FY 16

Expenditure Reductions (58,509)$         

Estimated Revenue Increases

BETE Reimbursement (75,000)$         
Vehicle Excise (40,000)$         

TOTAL OFFSET FOR SROs (173,509)$       

BUDGET CHANGES
Manager Proposed to absorb the SROs after May 11, 2015 Council Meeting


	0  Agenda 6-1-2015
	1  GFTV info sheet- may262015
	2  Information Sheet Garage Sale and Flea Market
	2a  Yard Sale-Flea Market Issues Identified for planned discussion
	2b  Flea Barn Yard Meeting Press Release 4-1-15 (2)
	2c  Yard Sale-Flea Market Issues actually discussed at the meeting including meeting notes
	2d  Barn Sales Draft Ordinance change
	2e  Barn Sales Draft Definition Change
	2f  4-6-2015 ARTICLE_VI ___FLEA_MARKETS
	2g  Garage Sale-Agr Barn Sale Fees
	3  Information sheet  appropriation resolve fy 15-16 budget
	3a  DRAFTAnnual Appropriation Resolve 2015-16 for public hearing and first reading
	3b  Fiscal Year 2016 manager proposed budget summary 051215 all SRO in city with reductions to cover
	new summary
	Exp Summary
	Revenue
	changes manager

	4  Minutes 5-11-2015 Special Meeting
	5  Minutes 5-18-2015
	6  ART VAN    AGENDA INFO SHEET
	6a  ART VAN    MISSION  GOALS
	7  City Auburn Proposal - LAArts 2015-16
	Cultural Plan L/A: Steering Committee
	Confirmed Members - April 2015
	1. Chip Morrison, President, Androscoggin Chamber of Commerce
	2. Lincoln Jeffers, Director of Economic & Community Development, City of Lewiston
	3. Misty Parker, Economic Development Specialist, City of Lewiston
	4. Grayling Cunningham, Artist; Founder, Artwalk L/A; Advisory Board President, Outright
	L/A; CoFounder, Confess Studios; Creative Director, Orbit Hair Styling
	5. Judy Andrucki, Attorney, Andrucki & King Law Offices
	6. Mary LaFontaine, Councilor, City of Auburn, Auburn School Committee Member
	7. Darby Ray, Director, Harward Center for Community Partnerships, Bates College
	8. Alan Manoian, Economic Development Specialist, City of Auburn
	9. John Holden, President and CoChair, LewistonAuburn Economic Growth Council
	10. Dina Jackson, Economic Development Specialist, Androscoggin Valley Council of
	Governments; Grant Manager, Maine’s Lakes & Mountains Tourism Council
	11. Rick Speer, Director, Lewiston Public Library
	12. Janet Mitchko, CoArtistic Director, Public Theater
	13. Chris L'Hommedieu, President, Community Little Theater; Attorney, L'Hommedieu Law
	14. Jim Parakilas, Faculty, James L. Moody, Jr. Family Professor of Performing Arts at
	Bates College
	15. Mike Davis, Principal, Walton Elementary School
	16. Jill Hyland, Educator, Edward Little High School
	17. Jana Mates, Assistant Principal, Longley Elementary School
	18. Bill Low, Curator, Bates College Museum of Art
	19. Charlie Hewitt, Artist; Developer
	20. David Blocher, Board Director, Maine Music Society; Member, Arts & Culture
	LewistonAuburn
	21. Heather Morin, Owner, She Doesn't Like Guthries Restaurant & Cafe
	22. Margaret Craven, Senator, State of Maine
	23. Rob Little, Artist
	24. Corallina Breuer, Artist; Secretary, Downeast Friends of the Folk Arts
	25. Sheri Withers, Owner, Downtown Handmade & Vintage
	26. Jared Lussier, Editor, Current Magazine
	27. Dianna Pozdniakov, Founder and Designer, SofiaFima
	28. Kirsten Nunnery, Box Office Manager, Franco Center
	Total Expenses: $33,972

	8  JOHN STORER RESOLVE
	10  Liberty Festival Application
	10a  2015_GFP_Auburn map
	11  Information sheet  bond reallocation order
	11a  Auburn 2016 reallocation order - notice of public hearing
	11b  Order 40-05182015 Bonds-Reallocation bond proceeds
	12  Information sheet  bond order 41
	12a  Auburn FY16 CIP Bonds - notice of public hearing (W4856746x7AC2E)
	12b   Order 41-05182015 Bonds-Tax Levy
	13  Information CAVU Cafe Liquor License
	13a  CAVU Liquor App
	13b  Criminal History CAVU
	13c  Liquor License CAVU Restaurant New Liquor License
	13d  Order 44-06012015 CAVU Cafe
	14  Information sheet  appropriation resolve fy 15-16 budget
	14a  DRAFTAnnual Appropriation Resolve 2015-16 for public hearing and first reading
	14b  Fiscal Year 2016 manager proposed budget summary 051215 all SRO in city with reductions to cover
	new summary
	Exp Summary
	Revenue
	changes manager


